
 
 
 

 

 

Despatched: 21.01.14 

 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  

29 January 2014 at 7.00 pm 

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks 
 

AGENDA 

 
Membership: 

 
Chairman: Cllr. Mrs. Davison  Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Scholey 

Cllrs. Mrs. Cook, Fittock, London, Mrs. Morris and Walshe 

 

 
 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Pages Contact 

1. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)  

 To agree the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Committee held on 5 November 2013, as a correct 

record. 

 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

 Any interest not already registered 

 

  

3. Actions arising from the last meeting  (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 

 
4. Review of Members' Allowances  (Pages 9 - 12) 

 
Helen Martin 

Tel: 01732 227483 

5. Openness and transparency on personal interests  (Pages 13 - 32) 

 
Christine Nuttall 

Tel: 01732 227245 

6. Recording of meetings  (Pages 33 - 36) 

 
C Nuttall/ M Laver-Smith 

01732227245/7156 

7. Review of New Governance Arrangements - 

Members' Survey 

  

(Pages 37 - 58) 

 
Lee Banks 

Tel: 01732 227161 

8. Work Plan  (Pages 59 - 60) 

 

 

 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.) 

 

 
 

    



 

 

 

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain 

factual information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate  

Contact Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 

 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format 

please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 

The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

13 
 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2013 commencing at 7.00 pm 

 

 

Present: Cllr. Mrs. Davison (Chairman) 

 

Cllr. Scholey (Vice-Chairman) 

  

 Cllrs. Mrs. Cook, Fittock and Walshe 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Mrs. Morris 

 

 Cllrs. Brookbank, Davison, Firth, Mrs. Hunter and Miss. Stack were also 

present. 

 

 

15. Minutes  

 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Governance Committee held on 

19th September 2013 be approved as signed as a correct record. 

 

16. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no additional declarations of interest. 

 

17. Actions arising from the last meeting  

 
The Committee noted that the governance questionnaire had been circulated on 25th 

October and responses were due back by 15th November. 

 

18. Review of New Governance Arrangements  

 
The Committee considered a report providing a review of the new governance 

arrangements which were introduced at the Annual Council meeting in May 2013.  The 

new governance structure was intended to address concerns with the previous structure 

in the following areas - Perception of remoteness/ inaccessibility of portfolios; feeling of 

disengagement from influence and decision-making; lack of training and development 

(succession planning for future Cabinet members); and the need to streamline the 

system to match the resource available. 

 

The report also outlined alternative governance options such as a Committee System or 

a hybrid model requiring Secretary of State approval. 

 

At its meeting on 10th July 2013, the Governance Committee  asked the Head of 

Transformation and Strategy to develop a questionnaire seeking Members’ views of the 

new governance structure.  The questionnaire was circulated to all Councillors on 25th 

October 2013.  To date 20 responses to the questionnaire had been received. 

 

The Monitoring Officer reported that she had spoken to Kathy Billington at the 

Department for Communities and Local Government who had confirmed that to date no 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Governance Committee - 5 November 2013 

14 

 

applications for hybrid models had been received.  There was no clear definition of a 

hybrid model however, if a Council opted to pursue this route an application for approval 

of the model would have to be made to the Secretary of State.  Once this approval had 

been granted the application would have to follow a process through the House of 

Commons and House of Lords as any proposed system would have to be suitable for any 

Local Authority.  If a new system were introduced it would also have to remain in place 

for a minimum of five years meaning that any decision taken this year would bind a 

future Council. 

 

The Committee felt that in light of the information reported by the Monitoring Officer it 

would not be practical or cost effective to pursue a hybrid model at this time. 

 

It was generally felt that Members still did not feel involved in the decision making 

process and there was a lack of engagement.  One of the main issues with the new 

system was that there was not sufficient opportunity for Members to debate issues 

before decisions were taken.  Members reported that they now felt less aware of 

decisions that were being taken than was the case under the previous system. 

 

A Member suggested that at the beginning of the municipal year there had been teething 

problems with the new system as there had been a long gap between the new system 

being approved and the first cycle of meetings.  Once the meetings were underway there 

had not been any real business to consider and instead Members had been presented 

with information as if there had been a change in Council rather than a change in 

Committee structure.  Members also questioned why business from the work plans of the 

previous Select Committees had not been transferred to the work plans of the Cabinet 

Advisory Committees. 

 

A visiting Member expressed disappointment that some Councillors were making very 

little effort to engage with the new committee structure and stressed that Councillors had 

a responsibility to attend meetings and involve themselves when opportunities were 

presented. 

 

The Committee felt that any decisions that were taken surrounding whether to 

recommend a further change to governance arrangements should be informed by the 

responses to the questionnaire that had been circulated.  The Committee agreed that the 

Governance Working Group should be established to review the responses to the 

questionnaire and asked Officers to fix a suitable date for the first meeting. 

 

Action 1: That Officers arrange a suitable date for the first meeting of the 

Governance Working Group where the responses to the governance 

questionnaire could be considered. 

 

Resolved: That the Governance Working Group be established to review the 

responses to the Governance Questionnaire circulated on 25th October 2013. 

 

19. Review of the Allocation of Special Responsibility Allowances  

 
At the Council meeting on 1 October 2013 the Governance Committee was asked to 

review the allocation of special responsibility allowances and consider all options within 

the budget available.  The Committee considered a report proposing that a working group 

be established to review the allocation of the available budget. 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



Governance Committee - 5 November 2013 

15 

 

 

The Head of Finance reported that the table referenced in paragraph 2 of the report was 

missing some information.  It was confirmed that special responsibility allowances were 

payable to Chairmen of the Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee and the Cabinet 

Advisory Committees and these allowances were 50% of the basic allowance. 

 

The Monitoring Officer reminded the Committee that any amendments to the Members’ 

Allowances Scheme would have to be referred to the Joint Independent Remuneration 

Panel for consideration. 

 

The Chairman reminded members that the allowance scheme had been agreed by 

Council and only minor changes were being considered. 

 

Members felt that any further changes that were made to the Members’ Allowance 

Scheme should be evidenced based.  It was suggested that job specifications for 

different roles could be drawn up in order to provide the required evidence. 

 

The Committee considered the issue of allowances for Vice-Chairmen.  There was 

agreement that the Vice-Chairman of the Development Control Committee  had unique 

responsibilities and these should be recognised through a special responsibility 

allowance. 

 

Resolved: That a Working Group be established to further review the allocation of 

special responsibility allowances. 

 

20. Amendments to the Council's Constitution: Part 13 - Officer Responsibilities and 

Delegations  

 
The Committee considered a report setting out changes that had been made to Part 13 

of the Council’s Constitution. The main changes were as follows: 

 

• The Director posts were deleted. 

• All Heads of Service posts were deleted. 

• The Head of Paid Service and s.151 Officer responsibilities were amalgamated 

under the Chief Executive post. 

• Paragraph 4.6 was updated to reflect the fact that Ethical Standards Officers no 

longer exist under current legislation with the Monitoring Officer having delegated 

authority in relation to investigations.  A cross reference in a foot note to Appendix 

S of the Constitution “Arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct Complaints 

under the Localism Act 2011” can be made for clarification purposes. 

• Following the creation of the new Chief Officer posts generic delegations to such 

officers were set out under paragraph 11. 

• All new Chief Officers were asked to set out their responsibilities and to check and 

where necessary update their legal powers. 

• A typographical error was spotted in relation to the sum set out for writing off 

debts.  This read £500 and should have read £5,000 in line with Appendix D 

“Financial Procedure Rules”.  A cross reference in a foot note to Appendix D of the 

Constitution “Financial Procedure Rules” can be made for clarification purposes. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Governance Committee - 5 November 2013 

16 

 

The Monitoring Officer reported that the new delegations had been operating since 1st 

September 2013 and no issues had arisen.  If any problems were to occur with the 

arrangements the delegation scheme would be referred back to the Governance 

Committee for consideration.  

 

The Chairman reported that she had reviewed all the changes that had been made to 

Part 13 of the Constitution and thanked the Monitoring Officer for the care and accuracy 

with which the changes had been made. 

 

Resolved: That the changes to delegations made within the Constitution following 

the senior management restructure as approved by Council on the 1st October 

2013 be noted. 

 

21. Amendments to the Constitution relating to the Licensing function  

 
The Committee considered a report setting out proposed amendments to Part 8 and Part 

13 of the Council’s Constitution relating to the Licensing Function.  It was necessary to 

update the constitution to reflect changes that had been made to legislation and new 

legislation that had been implemented.   

 

In Part 8 – Licensing Committee, the Committee’s Terms of Reference had been 

amended to reflect new legislation in the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 

2011 – to enable the Local Authority to set a Late Night Levy or an Early Morning 

Restriction Order should they wish.  It was also being suggested that the Licensing 

Committee should delegate powers to the Licensing Sub-Committees for the 

determination of an application for Sexual Establishment licences.  The report also 

proposed a minor amendment to the Terms of Reference for the Licensing Sub-

Committee to enable some reports concerning the licensing of hackney carriages and 

private hire vehicles to be referred to a Licensing Sub-Committee at the discretion of 

Officers. 

 

The proposed changes to Part 13 – Officer Responsibilities and Delegations, clarify that 

the delegations to Officers to determine applications under the Licensing Act 2003 and 

Gambling Act 2005, exist only when no relevant representations have been received. 

Licensing Officers would be able to make representations on Licensing Act 2003 

applications and call for a review of a licence. 

 

A Member expressed concern that the quorum for Licensing Hearings was only two 

Members as problems could arise if the two Members did not agree.  Officers explained 

that it was very rare that a situation arose where there were only two Members at a 

hearing as a Member was kept on standby to attend at late notice and Members were 

substituted if necessary.  The Committee suggested that it would be helpful to have 

some wording in the Constitution to formalise these arrangements. 

 

Resolved: That Full Council be recommended to approve the amendments to Part 

8 and Part 13 of the Council’s constitution attached at Appendix A and Appendix B 

of the report.  

 

 

 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



Governance Committee - 5 November 2013 

17 

 

22. Work Plan  

 
The Committee considered its work plan for the year.  Members felt that it would be 

necessary to hold an additional meeting on Wednesday 29th January 2014 in order for 

the responses to the governance questionnaire to be formally considered by the 

Committee.  At this meeting Members could also consider the recommendations from 

the Working Group set up to review Special Responsibility Allowances and a report on 

Options for Recording Council Meetings. 

 

Resolved: That an additional meeting of the Governance Committee be scheduled 

for 29 January 2014. 

 

 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 8.12 PM 

 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



  

ACTIONS FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 5 DECEMBER 2013 

Action Description Status and last updated Contact Officer 

ACTION 1 
That Officers arrange a suitable date for the 

first meeting of the Governance Working Group 

where the responses to the governance 

questionnaire could be considered. 

 

Meetings of the working group have taken 

place. 

C Nuttall 

 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REVIEW OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES 

Governance Committee – 29 January 2014  

 

Report of  Chief Officer – Legal and Governance 

Chief Finance Officer 

Status: For Decision  

Also considered by: Council– 18 February 2014 

Key Decision: No  

This report supports the Key Aim of Effective Use of Council Resources  

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Fleming 

Contact Officer(s) Christine Nuttall Ext. 7245 

Helen Martin Ext. 7483 

Working Group Recommendation to Governance Committee:  That special 

responsibility allowances be paid to vice-chairman of committees 

Governance Committee Recommendation to Council: To be reported at the Council 

meeting on 18 February 2014. 

Reason for recommendation: Following changes to the Governance arrangements and a 

review of Members allowances, Council asked this Committee to review the allocation of 

special responsibility allowances. 

Background 

1 At the Council meeting on 1 October 2013 the Governance Committee was asked 

to review the allocation of special responsibility allowances and consider all 

options within the budget available.  

2 This Committee considered the issue of allowances for Vice-Chairmen at the 

meeting on 5 November 2013, and agreed that the Vice-Chairman of the 

Development Control Committee had unique responsibilities and these should be 

recognised through a special responsibility allowance.  It was further agreed that a 

Working Group be established to further review the allocation of special 

responsibility allowances. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

3 The Working Group recommend that a special reponsibility allowance should be 

paid to all vice-chairmen to reflect their share of the workload and level of 

responsibility. 

4 The remit for any review of Members Allowances has always been on the basis 

that any new allowances scheme would have to be contained within budget.   

5 The Working Group recommendation is for the allowances for Chairmen agreed by 

Council on 1 October 2013, now be ‘top-sliced’ by 20% and that amount be paid 

to the Vice Chairman.  Details of the cash amounts are shown in Appendix A 

6 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances)(England) Regulations 2003, states 

that before an authority make or amends a Members’ Allowance scheme, the 

authority shall have regard to the recommendations made in relation to it by the 

Independent Remuneration Panel.  The Panel have been consulted on this 

proposal and they raised no issues and have stated that in future they will 

consider this allowance as part of their recommendations if supporting evidence 

of workload is provided.  

7 The JIRP have recommended that Members should not receive more than one 

Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) and the Working Group did not propose any 

changes to that recommendation. 

8 This amendment to the scheme can be funded within the current budget. 

9 It is further recommended that any revisions to the special responsibility 

allowances take effect from next Council meeting. 

Key Implications 

Legal 

10 Section 20 of The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 

2003 requires each authority to establish an Independent Remuneration Panel. 

11 Section 17 of the 2003 Regulations places a duty on the Council to publish as 

soon as reasonably practicable after making any amendments to the current 

Members’ Allowance Scheme a notice in one or more newspapers circulating in its 

area.  The Council must also ensure that copies of the Scheme are available for 

inspection by members of the public at the principal office of the Authority, at all 

reasonable hours. 

Financial  

12 The financial implications of the JIRP recommendations are set out in the report 

and its appendices. 

 

 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Equality Impacts  

 
Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

No The proposed decision does not have any 

adverse effect upon any protected group 

as identified in the legislation.  

 

 

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

Yes 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 N/A  

 

Appendices Appendix 1 – Schedule of all Allowances 

 

Background Papers JIRP Review of Sevenoaks District Council Members 

Allowances – June 2013 

Constitution - Appendix G  - Members Allowances 

Scheme 2013/14 

 

Mrs Christine Nuttall 

Chief Officer for Legal and Governance & 

Adrian Rowbotham 

Chief Finance Officer 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Appendix 1 

 
Members’ Allowances Scheme (2013/14)  

 

Description of Allowance  

 

Allowance per 

Member 

Original 

Proposed 

Allowances 

per Member/ 

Responsibility 

 2013/14 2013/14 

Revisions in 

shaded boxes 

 (£) (£) 

Basic Allowance (all Members)  5,140 5,140 

Special Responsibility Allowances:   

Opposition Group Leaders:   

   

Liberal Democrat (2 Members)  1,277 1,277 

Labour (4 Members)  1,277 1,277 

Cabinet Chairman (Council Leader)  15,422 15,422 

Cabinet Members  6,426 6,426 

Deputy Cabinet Members -  643 643 

Chairmen   

Advisory Committees (x5) -  2,571 2,057 

Audit – (no vice chair) 2,571 2,571 

Development Control  3,856 3,085 

Governance -  2,571 2,057 

Health Liaison Board -  2,571 2,057 

Licensing -  2,571 2,057 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board  2,571 2,057 

Scrutiny  2,057 

Standards - - 

Vice Chairmen   

Advisory Committees (x5) - 514 

Development Control - 771 

Governance,Health Liaison Board, Licensing, 

Scrutiny, Standards, Joint Transportation Board 

 514 

Committee Members: 
  

Development Control members  257 257 

Licensing Committee members 129 129 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



OPENNESS AND TRANSPARENCY ON PERSONAL INTERESTS 

Governance Committee – 29 January 2014 

 

Report of  Monitoring Officer 

Status: For consideration and decision 

Also considered by: Standards Committee – 16 January 2014 

Council – 18 February 2013 

Key Decision No 

This report supports the Key Aim of effective management of Council resources 

Contact Officer(s) Mrs Christine Nuttall – Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

Recommendation to the Standards Committee: 

(a) to consider whether the DCLG amendment underlined in red and highlighted in 
the Illustrative Text, as set out in Appendix A in this report be incorporated into  

the Sevenoaks District Council’s Code of Conduct;  

(b) to note the amended Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
“guide for councillors” set out at Appendix B regarding “Openness and 

transparency on personal interests”; and 

Recommendation to the Governance Committee: 

(a) to consider whether the DCLG amendment underlined in red and highlighted in 
the Illustrative Text, as set out in Appendix A in this report be incorporated into  

the Sevenoaks District Council’s Code of Conduct;  

(b) to note the amended Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
“guide for councillors” set out at Appendix B regarding “Openness and 

transparency on personal interests”; and 

Recommendation to Full Council: 

(a) to consider whether the DCLG amendment underlined in red and highlighted in 
the Illustrative Text, as set out in Appendix A in this report be incorporated into  

the Sevenoaks District Council’s Code of Conduct;  

(b) to note the amended Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
“guide for councillors” set out at Appendix B regarding  “Openness and 

transparency on personal interests”. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

Reason for recommendation:  To keep the Council’s Code of Conduct (the Code) under 

review and to ensure that Members of the Council receive up to date guidance on the 

Code of Conduct. 

Introduction and Background 

1 Following the introduction of the Localism Act 2011 and subordinate legislation 

extensive changes were made to the Standards regime.  The changes were 

brought in to achieve high standards of conduct and to put in place an appropriate 

regime.  Under the new regime Councils were obliged to adopt a Code of Conduct 

for their Members and Co-opted Members in order to promote and maintain high 

standards of conduct.  These included provisions relating to the registration and 

disclosure of interests and authorities were no longer required to adopt codes 

based on a national model.  Most authorities chose to adopt codes which reflected 

models suggested by various recognised organisations.  Sevenoaks District 

Council chose the text published by the Department for Communities and Local 

Government (DCLG). 

2 The DCLG has published revised guidance on Personal Interests, with respect to 

membership of a Trades Union.  The covering letter from DCLG and the Guidance 

to which it relates concludes that it is a legal requirement that such membership 

should be ‘registered and declared’.  The covering letter from DCLG and the 

changes that would need to be incorporated into our Code of Conduct are shown 

in red within the DCLG Illustrative Text as set out at Appendix A. 

3 When it comes to registering and declaring pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

the illustrative text from the DCLG takes the view that membership of a Trade 

Union is a Non-Pecuniary interest and is not prescribed as a Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interest.  Therefore there is no enforceable criminal legal power to back 

compliance with this requirement. 

4 However, the revised guidance as set out at Appendix B explains  that any 

payment or financial benefit from a trade union is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  

Therefore non disclosure could result in a criminal sanction.  The Council’s 

Notification of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Form does require under Part B 

Sponsorship disclosure of “Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 

(other than from Sevenoaks District Council) … in respect of any expenses incurred 

by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of 

yourself.  This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within 

the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992”.  

Registering Membership of a Trade Union 

5 It has always been the position of this Council and the Standards Committee that 

openness and transparency are key to maintaining public confidence in the office 

of Councillor.  With that in mind, when the Council adopted its new Code of 

Conduct, it continued to be a requirement of the Code that all Members give 

notification of Non Pecuniary Interests that include “Bodies whose principle 

purpose include the influence of public opinion or policy of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management (including any political 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

party or trade union)”.  In conclusion, the Council’s policy position on transparency 

with respect to Trades Union membership is consistent with the DCLG position. 

Is a Dispensation necessary to take part in Setting Council Tax or a Precept 

6 The position on this has been made clear in the revised guidance which confirms 

DCLG’s view that a dispensation is not required to take part in the business of 

setting council tax or a precept, simply by virtue of being a homeowner or tenant 

within the Authority’s area.  The Committee is asked to note this clarification as 

this was a matter under discussion at the last meeting of the Standards 

Committee. 

Key Implications 

Financial  

None. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

Under section 28(2) of the Localism Act 2011, “A relevant authority must secure that its 

code of conduct includes the provision the authority considers appropriate in respect of 

the registration in its register, and disclosure of- 

(a) pecuniary interests, and 

(b) interests other than pecuniary interests”. 

Accordingly, Members and Co-opted Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any 

interests that the Council has decided should be included in the register.    

Equality Impacts  

 
Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

 No  

 

 

 

This report provides insight into the high 

ethical standards applied across all levels 

of the authority. 

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

Yes  

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 N/A 

 

  

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

Conclusions 

The Committee is asked to consider whether the DCLG amendments as set out in red 

within their illustrative text within Appendix A to this report should be recommended to 

the Governance Committee for adoption by Council. 

Appendices Appendix A – Letter from DCLG dated 20th 

September 2013 with IIlustrative text for code 

dealing with the conduct expected of members and 

co-opted members of the authority when acting in 

that capacity with amendments shown in red for 

possible incorporation in the Members’ Code of 

Conduct. 

Appendix B – DCLG’s “Openness and transparency 

on personal interests  A guide for councillors” 

Background Papers: The Council’s Constitution in particular Appendix O 

“Notification of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

(Sevenoaks District Council)” and Appendix Q 

“Sevenoaks District Council Members’ Code of 

Conduct”. 

The Localism Act 2011 

 

Mrs Christine Nuttall 

Chief Officer for Legal and Governance 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Page 18

Agenda Item 5



Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Page 20

Agenda Item 5



Page 21

Agenda Item 5



Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Page 32

Agenda Item 5



 

RECORDING OF MEETINGS 

Governance Committee -  29 January 2014 

  

Report of  Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

Status: For Decision 

Key Decision: No  

This report supports the Key Aim of Effective Use of Council Resources 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Fleming 

Contact Officer(s) Mrs Christine Nuttall – Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

Recommendation to the Governance Committee:   

To consider the benefits and practicalities of the audio recording of certain meetings. 

Reason for recommendation:  With present technology anyone can record any meetings 

undetected which opens the possibility of challenge. 

Introduction and Background 

1 The Council’s Constitution states that in relation to the Photography and Recording 

of Meetings the consent of Members present at any meeting shall be required 

before any person may record, broadcast or photograph proceedings at the 

meeting.  Any recording, broadcasting or photography shall be conducted in a 

manner to be directed by the Chairman and shall cease immediately if either: 

• Members so resolve; or 

• The Chairman so directs. 

3 The Department for Communities and Local Government are encouraging the 

public to report on meetings, allowing the filming of councillors and officers at 

meetings that are open to the public including the social media reporting of 

meetings. 

As a result of the above information the Governance Committee Working Group 

looked into the benefits of recording Council meetings which were concluded to be 

as follows: 

• With present technology anyone can record any meeting undetected which 

opens the possibility of challenge as to what was said at the meeting. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 

• The Council will have a true record of what was said in the event of an edited 

version being produced. 

Matters to be Considered  

4. The Governance Committee Working Group considered that the recording of Council 

meetings in the Council Chamber could be feasible as this is an area already wired 

for sound.    

5. The I.T. Department of the Council are looking into the practicalities of recording in 

the Council Chamber with some testing needing to take place and the cost evaluated. 

6. The recording could be made available to the public in the event of a challenge by the 

public taking place.   

7. Information in relation to what recording is taking place at other councils indicates 

that Dartford Council and Tonbridge and Malling Council currently undertake no 

recording of meetings.  Tunbridge Wells Council is undertaking a trial run in relation 

to recording Full Council. 

8. The Governance Committee Working Group considered how attendees could be 

informed that recording was taking place.  They concluded that this could be 

achieved by an explanation being given at the bottom of the Agenda warning people 

that recording may take place.   

Key Implications 

Financial  

The financial cost and feasibility of recording will need to take place.  On balance the 

investment needed to install recording equipment would need to be justified against the 

benefit of an audio recording. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

The Governance Committee Working Group considered that with present technology 

anyone can record any meeting undetected which opens the possibility of challenge as to 

what was said if we do not have our own recording which the Council can guarantee has 

not been ‘edited’. 

Resource (non financial) 

Members of the public may on occasion ask to listen to recordings and Freedom of 

Information requests may be submitted in this regard.  These requests would need to be 

accommodated where at the time of the request the relevant recording still exists and 

has not been deleted. The costs, in terms of officer time, could be come an issue if they 

were regularly requested to search for individual comments made by Members.    

     

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



 

Equality Impacts  

 
Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have potential to 

disadvantage or discriminate 

against different groups in the 

community? 

 No                                                                      

 

 

 

The introduction of recording certain 

Council Meetings enables there to be a 

true copy of what was said. 

b. Does the decision being made 

or recommended through this 

paper have the potential to 

promote equality of 

opportunity? 

Yes  

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts 

identified above? 

 N/A 

 

Conclusions 

The Governance Committee Working Group concluded that the need on occasion to 

clarify what may have taken place at a council meeting, if issues of accuracy are raised, 

may make it desirable for some Council meetings to be recorded in the future.    

  

Background Papers: Sevenoaks District Council Constitution 

Department for Community and Local Government 

“Your council’s cabinet – going to its meetings, 

seeing how it works – a guide for local people” 

 

 

Mrs Christine Nuttall 

Chief Officer for Legal and Governance 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REVIEW OF NEW GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS – MEMBERS SURVEY 

Governance Committee – 29 January 2014 

 

Report of  Chief Officer Legal and Governance 

Status: For Consideration 

Key Decision: No  

Executive Summary: The Governance Committee is tasked with reviewing the new 

governance arrangements which were introduced at Annual Council in May 2013.  As part 

of this review a survey of Members was carried out between 25 October and 15 

November and this report provides Members with an update on the results of the survey 

and sets out a proposal for a follow up survey in the coming months. 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Fleming 

Contact Officer(s) Christine Nuttall Ext. 7245 

Lee Banks Ext. 7161  

Recommendation to Governance Committee:   

Members note the results of the Governance Survey and approve that a further survey on 

Governance arrangements be carried out in March 2014. 

Reason for recommendation:  To ensure that the Governance Committee considers the 

results of the Members survey on the Council’s Governance arrangements and that those 

results inform the review of the new governance arrangements as tasked by Council in 

May 2013. 

Introduction and Background 

1 The Governance Committee was tasked with reviewing the new governance 

arrangements which were introduced at Annual Council in May 2013 in addition to 

looking at options such as the Committee System or a Hybrid Model requiring 

Secretary of State approval and to report back to Council by April 2014. 

2 At their meeting of 5 November the Governance Committee approved that a 

survey of Members would be carried out to help develop “First Impressions of the 

New Governance Structure”.  The Committee agreed that the survey be circulated 

to all Members on or around Friday 25th October 2013 after all Advisory 

Committees had held their second meetings, with responses to be received by the 

15th November 2013. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 

3 The Members Governance Working Group met in December 2013 to consider the 

Governance Arrangement questionnaire responses and this report details those 

results and provides a summary of the initial views of the Working Group. 

Members Governance Survey 

4 Provided as Appendix A to this report is a copy of the survey that was sent to 

Members on Friday 25 October 2013.  The survey was open for a period of 3 

weeks and received 29 responses, a response rate of 55%. 

5 A summary of results and a short narrative summarising the findings against each 

of the 12 questions asked is available as Appendix B to this report. 

6 The Members Working Group concluded that it may be helpful to run a further, 

simpler survey, in March this year to follow up and clarify some of the points 

raised from the survey results presented at Appendix B.  It is proposed that this 

recommendation be discussed at the Governance Committee meeting. 

Other Options Considered and/or Rejected  

None 

Key Implications 

Financial  

None.  There are no financial implications arising from the Members Survey on 

Governance Arrangements. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

None. There are no legal or risk implications arising from the Members Survey on 

Governance Arrangements. 

Equality Impacts 

 
Consideration of impacts under the Public Sector Equality Duty: 

Question Answer Explanation / Evidence 

a. Does the decision being made or 

recommended through this paper 

have potential to disadvantage or 

discriminate against different 

groups in the community? 

No The decision as to whether to run an 

additional Member survey on the Council’s 

Governance arrangements does not raise 

any equality issues. 

b. Does the decision being made or 

recommended through this paper 

have the potential to promote 

equality of opportunity? 

 No 

c. What steps can be taken to 

mitigate, reduce, avoid or 

minimise the impacts identified 

above? 

 Not applicable 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



 

Conclusions 

The survey of Members on the Council’s Governance Arrangements has provided a range 

of information that may be helpful in the Committees task of reviewing the effectiveness 

of those arrangements.  In considering the results from the survey Members are asked to 

consider running a second survey in March this year in order to follow up and clarify some 

of the points raised from the initial survey.  

Appendices Appendix A – Members Survey Questionnaire 

Appendix B – Members Survey – Summary of Results 

Background Papers: Review of New Governance Arrangements – Report to the 

Governance Committee 5 November 2013 

 

Mrs Christine Nuttall 

Chief Officer for Legal and Governance 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

As set out at the Full Council meeting in April the basic premise of the Council's governance review was the need to 

review both member and officer resource in response to the future challenges facing Sevenoaks, the efficiency and 

transparency of decision-making, and in part the extended governance opportunities afforded by the Localism Act 

2011. 

 

From meetings held with Members the general tenor of their concerns with the previous structure were summarised 

as: 

• perception of remoteness/inaccessibility of portfolios; 

• feeling of disengagement from influence and decision-making; 

• lack of training and development (succession planning for future Cabinet members); and 

• need to streamline the system to match the resource available. 

 

It was agreed that a review of the new governance arrangements would be undertaken and a report would go back to 

Full Council in April 2014. 

 

Members are invited to give their views on the new governance arrangements through this survey. The questions are 

focused on whether the new arrangements meet with the initial aims and have suitably addressed Members 

concerns. 

 

The survey will close on 15 November 2013. The results will first be considered by the Governance Committee and 

will go on to inform the report back to Full Council in April 2014. 

 

Introduction

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



Page 2

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

1. Please tell us to what extent you agree with each of the following questions about the 

new governance structure.

2. Do you think you are made aware of items under consideration before a 

recommendation is made?

 

Yes - I strongly 

agree
Yes - I agree

I neither agree 

nor disagree
No - I disagree

No - I strongly 

disagree
Too early to say Do not know

Do you feel that the Council 

is performing more 

effectively and efficiently?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that the Cabinet 

is more accountable under 

the new arrangements?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel more engaged 

and involved in Council 

business?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel more engaged 

and involved in the decsion 

making process?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that you have 

been more able to influence 

decision making?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that the new 

governance structure 

provides more opportunities 

for training and for your 

future development?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that Portfolios 

are now less remote and 

more accessible than 

before?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that the role of 

Scrutiny has been 

enhanced?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Yes - I strongly agree
 

nmlkj

Yes - I agree
 

nmlkj

I neither agree nor disagree
 

nmlkj

No - I disagree
 

nmlkj

No - I strongly disagree
 

nmlkj

Do not know
 

nmlkj

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Page 3

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

3. If you would like to comment further about questions 1 and 2 above please use the 

space provided below

 

55

66

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Page 4

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

4. Please tell us to what extent do you agree with the following questions about the 

Cabinet Advisory Committees.

5. If you would like to comment further about the questions about the Advisory 

Committees please use the space provided below

 

 

Advisory Committees

Yes - I strongly 

agree
Yes - I agree

I neither agree 

nor disagree
No - I disagree

No - I stongly 

disagree
Too early to say Not applicable

Do you feel that Portfolio 

Holders should be able to 

Chair Advisory Committees?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that you have 

been consulted about policy 

matters through an Advisory 

Committee?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that advisory 

Committees have made it 

easier for you to influence 

Council policy?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that you have 

been able to contribute your 

ideas for intiatives the 

Council could undertake?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Do you feel that you have 

been encouraged to 

contribute your ideas 

through the Advisory 

Committees?

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

55

66

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



Page 5

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

6. To ensure proper consideration of the range of services within the remit of each 

committee, the current number of scheduled meetings is...

7. To what extent do you agree that working groups improve Council policy and / or 

performance?

8. To what extent do you agree that working groups represent value for money?

9. From your experience do you feel that the number of meetings and working groups 

require a greater involvement of officers under the new governance arrangements?

 

Meetings & Working Groups

... too few
 

nmlkj

... about right
 

nmlkj

... too many
 

nmlkj

Strongly agree
 

nmlkj

Agree
 

nmlkj

Neither agree nor disagree
 

nmlkj

Disagree
 

nmlkj

Strongly disagree
 

nmlkj

Too early to say
 

nmlkj

Do not know
 

nmlkj

Strongly agree
 

nmlkj

Agree
 

nmlkj

Neither agree nor disagree
 

nmlkj

Disagree
 

nmlkj

Strongly disagree
 

nmlkj

Do not know
 

nmlkj

Yes - I strongly agree
 

nmlkj

Yes - I agree
 

nmlkj

I neither agree nor disagree
 

nmlkj

No - I disagree
 

nmlkj

No - I strongly disagree
 

nmlkj

Too early to say
 

nmlkj

Do not know
 

nmlkj

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



Page 6

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

10. If you would like to comment further about questions 6 to 9 above please use the 

space provided below

 

55

66

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



Page 7

Governance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' SurveyGovernance Arrangements - Members' Survey

11. Overall in my opinion the main strength of the new governance arrangements is...

 

12. Overall in my opinion the main weakness of the new governance arrangements is...

 

 

55

66

55

66

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Governance Arrangements – Members’ Survey 

Summary of Results 

 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 7



Page 1111 of 8888 
 

Response Rate – 55% (29 of 53 Members) 

Question 1 – Governance Structure 

 

By evaluating the totality of the responses 
provided to each question in part 1 it is 
possible to say that there is no strong 
outcome for the effectiveness of the new 
governance structure against its initial 
objectives. 
 

• On average 32% of respondents 
agreed to their being an improvement. 

 

• On average 35% of respondents 
disagree to their being an 
improvement. 

 

• On average 21% of respondents were 
neutral and neither agreed or 
disagreed that there had been an 
improvement. 

 

• On average 12% of respondents felt 
that it was too early too say if there 
had been an improvement. 

 

• Respondents most strongly agreed 
that the role of scrutiny had been 
enhanced. 
 

• Grouped together respondents most 
strongly disagreed that they were more 
engaged or more able to influence 
decision making. 

 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7



Page 2222 of 8888 
 

Question 2 – Do you think you are made more aware of items under consideration before a recommendation is made? 

 

• 4% more respondents agree that they 
are more aware of items under 
consideration before a recommendation 
is made. 

 

• 14% of respondents neither agreed nor 
disagreed and 4% of respondents did 
not know. 

Question 3 – Open text response to questions 1 & 2 above 

12 comments were provided 

Comments included: 

• Portfolio holders should not Chair Advisory Committees 

• Too many Advisory Committees 

• Cabinet been reduced in size (so less Members involved at that level) 

• Select Committees seem to be more effective than Advisory Committees  

  

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7



Page 3333 of 8888 
 

Question 4 – Cabinet Advisory Committees 

 

By evaluating the totality of the responses provided 
to each question about Advisory Committees it is 
possible to say that there is no strong outcome, but 
responses lean toward being supportive of them. 
 

• On average 42% of respondents agreed that 
Advisory Committees are meeting their purpose. 

 

• On average 30% of respondents disagree  that 
Advisory Committees are meeting their purpose. 

 

• On average 23% of respondents were neutral 
and neither agreed or disagreed that Advisory 
Committees are meeting their purpose. 

 

• On average 4% of respondents felt that it was 
too early too say if the Advisory Committees are 
meeting their purpose. 

 
• Grouped together respondents most strongly 

agreed they are both encouraged and more able 
to contribute their ideas. 
 

• Respondents most strongly disagreed, albeit by 
a margin of 3%, that Portfolio Holders should be 
able to chair Advisory Committees. 

Question 5 – Open text comments about the Advisory Committees  

7 comments were provided 

Comments included: 

• Not enough meetings 

• Portfolio holders should not chair Advisory Committees 

• Less effective than Select Committees  

36

39
37

50 50

25

21
19

21

29

39

29

37

25

21

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Portfolio Holders

should chair

Been consulted on

policy matters

Make it easier to

influence policy

Able to contribute

your ideas

Encouraged to

contribute ideas

%

Agree Neutral Disagree Too early to say

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 7



Page 4444 of 8888 
 

Question 6 – Number of scheduled meetings 

 

• 54% of respondents felt that the number of 
meetings being held was too few. 
 

• 46% of respondents felt that the number of 
meetings being held was about right. 
 

• No respondents felt that too many meetings 
were being held. 

 

  

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



Page 5555 of 8888 
 

Questions 7 & 8 – Working Groups 

 

• 46% of respondents agree that working 
groups improve Council policy and / or 
performance.  No respondents disagreed. 
 

• 46% of respondents agree that working 
groups represent value for money.  4% of 
respondents disagreed. 

 

  

46 46

43

50

0 4
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Improve policy / performance Represent value for money

%

Agree Neutral Disagree Too early to say

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 7



Page 6666 of 8888 
 

Question 9 – Involvement of officers 

 

• 54% of respondents agreed that the number of 
meetings and working groups require a greater 
involvement of officers. 
 

• 25% of respondents disagreed that the number 
of meetings and working groups require a 
greater involvement of officers. 
 

• 14% of respondents neither agreed nor 
disagreed that the number of meetings and 
working groups require a greater involvement of 
officers. 
 

• 4% of respondents said too early too say or do 
not know. 

 

  

54

14

25

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Greater involvement of officers

%

Agree Neutral Disagree Too early to say

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 7



Page 7777 of 8888 
 

Question 10 – Open text comments about questions 6 to 9 above 

6 comments were provided 

Comments included: 

• Working groups – are not new, were used under previous system 

• Working groups – exist because of  shortage of proper meetings 

• More demand on officers 

 

Question 11 – Open text comments on the main strength of the new governance arrangements 

21 comments were provided 

Comments included: 

• No strengths       

• More opportunity to participate 

• No significant improvement 

• Working groups have been a positive 

• Improved Scrutiny Committee  

• Provides for succession planning 

• Too soon to say 

• Members can contribute effectively and more meaningfully 

• Better engagement 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 7



Page 8888 of 8888 
 

 

Question 12 – Open text comments on the main weakness of the new governance arrangements 

22 comments were provided 

Comments included: 

• Less effective than Select Committee process 

• Not enough meetings  

• Too few Portfolio Holders 

• Too many Deputy Portfolio Holders  

• Less effective / efficient decision making process 

• Too much demand on a lean workforce 

• Cabinet Members chairing Advisory Committees 

• Too soon to say 

• Small number of people making most decisions 

• Responsibility for matters unclear 

• Too few Advisory Committees 

 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

Governance Committee Work Plan 2013/14 

13 March 2014 July 2014 September 2014 November 2014 

Outcome of review of new 

governance arrangements 

Review of Constitution 

   

 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Actions arising from the last meeting
	4 Review of Members' Allowances
	5 Openness and transparency on personal interests
	05 Appendices A and B Openess and Transparency

	6 Recording of meetings
	7 Review of New Governance Arrangements - Members' Survey
	07  Members Survey - Appendix A (Survey) to print
	07 Members Survey - Appendix B (Results)

	8 Work Plan



